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. TRUSTEES' REPORT :
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

The Trustees. present their annual. report together with the financial statements, and auditors’ report of the
charitable company for the year 1 September 2020 to 31 August 2021. The annual report serves the purposes of
. both a Trustees' report and a directors' report under company law.

The Trust operates an academy for. pupils aged 4t011in providing free Catholic education for pupils of varying
abilities. It has a pup|I capacity of 210 and had a roll of 206 in the schoo! census of January 2021. :

s
Structure, governance and management ) :

a. Constitution

The Academy is a charitable company limited by guaranteé and an exempt charity. S

The charitable company's Trust deed is the primary governing dooument of the Academy.

The Trustees of St Teresa's Catholic Primary School Brlstol are also the dlrectors of the chantable company for -
the purposes of company law. _ _ . S oy
. ! ’ faoe e

The charitable company is known as St Teresa's Catholic Primary School Bristol.-. ~

Details of the Trustees who served during the year, and to the date these accounts are approved are included in
the Reference and administrative details on page 1. .

b. Members' Iiability ’
Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the asséts of the charitable company in the
event of it being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they cease to be a member, such
- amount as may be required, not exceeding £10, for the debts and liabilities contracted before they ceased to be
a member.

c. Trustees' indemnities
Trustees benefit from indemnity insurance purchased at the Academy's expense to cover the: liability of the
Trustees which by virtue of any rule of law would otherwise attach to them in respect of any negligence, ESFA or -
breach of trust or breach of duty of which they may be guilty in relation to the.Academy, provided that any such .*
insurance shall not extend to any claim arising from any act or omission which the Trustees knew to be a breach
of trust or breach of duty or which was committed by the Trustees in reckless disreégard to whether it was a -
_breach of trust or breach of duty or not and provided also that any such insurance shall not extend to the costs of .
* any unsuccessful defence to a criminal prosecution brought against the Trustees in. thelr capacity-as Directors of
the Academy. The |Im|t of this indemnity is £2,000,000. ) ~ .

tw
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TRUSTEES' REPORT .(CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Structure,l‘governance and management (continued)

d. Method of recruitment and appointment or election of Trustees A

The Academy shall have the following Trustees as set out in the Articles of Association and funding agreement:

. The number of Trustees who are appointed by the Trustees shall be subject to a maximum of 12.
. All Trustees shall upon their appointment or election give us a wrltten undertaking to the Trustees and the -
' Diocesan Bishop.to uphold the Object of the Academy.
¢ *.  Upto 7 Foundation Trustees (of which at least 3 must be parents of a registered pupil or former pupll)
"« - Up to 2 staff Trustees appointed by the Board of Trustees. (The total number of Trustees who are
. - employees of the Academy (lncludlng the. Headteacher) must not exceed one thrrd of the total number of
Governors). :

- 1 parent Trustee who is elected by parents of registered puplls at the Academy
The Headteacher who is treated for all purposes as being an ex officio Trustee.
- Any additional Trustees.(if appointed as seen fit by the Secretary of State).
" The Academy-may also have up to 3 co opted Trustees, providing that the number of Foundation Trustees

- increases proportionately. to ensure that a majorlty of Trustees are Foundation Trustees by at Ieast two: In the.
- event'that a staff member is co opted, the total number of Trustees employed by the Academy |ncIud|ng the
. Headteacher must not exceed one third of the total number of Trustees.

Trustees are appointed for a four year period, except that this time does not apply to the Headteacher. Subject
to remaining eligible to be a particular type of Trustee, any Trustee can be re appointed or re elected.

When appointing new Trustees, the Board will give consideration to the skills and -experience mix of existing
Trustees in- order to ensure that the Board has the necessary skills’ to contnbute fully to the Academy’s
development

e. Policies adopted for,the induction and training of Trustees

The training and induction provided for new Trustees will depend upon their existing experience but would
always include a tour of the Academy and a chance to meet the Chair of Trustees and the Headteacher. All
‘Trustees are provided- with copies of policies, procedures; minutes, accounts, budgets, plans and other’
documents that they will need to undertake their role as Trustees.- As there are normally only two or three new
- Trustees a year, induction tends to be informal and is tailored specifically to the individual. ‘Advantage is taken of
specific courses offered by the Diocese, the Local Authority and other bodies.

- Page 4
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. TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

.Structure, governance and management (continued)

f. Organisational structure

A
'

The Board of Trustees normally meets five times a year; twice before Christmas, once in Spring and twice in
Summer. The Board establishes an overall framework for the governance of the Academy and determines
membership, terms of reference and procedures of Committees and other groups. It receives reports and
policies from its Committees for ratification. It monitors the activities of the Committees through the minutes of
their meetings. . The Board may from time to time establish Working Groups to perform specific tasks which -
would be time limited. . . -

There were 5.committees at the start of the year as follows:

. Admissions Commlttee meets at least 3 tlmes a year to agree admissions policy- and to dea( wuth
~ - admissions.
. - Curriculum and School Improvement Commlttee meets at least three tlmes a year to evaluate and

review Academy policy, practice and performance in relation to curriculum planning, communications,
target setting, assessment and Statutory Attainment Tests. It also ensures that the Spemal Needs Glfted
& Talented Enrichment provision meets the needs of our pupils.

+ . Resources Committee — this meets at least six times a year and is responsible for monitoring, evaluatlng
and reviewing policy and performance in relation to financial management and ensuring compliance with
reporting and regulatory requirements. The Committee receive reports from the Responsible Officer and
from auditors and recommends appropriate actions, and drafting the annual budget which then goes to
Board of Trustees for ratification, under its delegated powers and financial policy statements. It also
incorporates the role of a Risk and Audit Committee to maintain an oversight of the Academy Trust's
financial, governance, risk management and internal control systems to report findings termly and
annually to'the Trust Board and the Accounting Officer as a critical element of the trust's annual reporting
requirements. The Resources Committee other remit is giving detailed consideration to the management

" of the Academy's estate with due regard to the School Improvement Plan and health and safety, ensuring
the buildings are as ecologically efficient as possible, within resources. The committee also has a staffing
remit.

« - Mission and Ethos Committee this deals with all matters relating to pupils’ spiritual, moral, social, cultural
and physical development. Ensuring the Health & Safety, development and well being of staff and pupils
and promoting community cohesion and parental and community engagement. The committee sets
priorities for improvement and monitoring and develops and reviews school policies.

’ Pay and Recruitment Committee — this deals with staff pay and conditions and appointment of new. staff
This Committee meets as and when required.

The following decisions are reserved to the Members; to consider any proposals for.changes to the status -or
constitution of the Academy and it's Committee structure; to appoint or remove the -Chair and/or Vice Chair;
suspensmn of Trustees; the appointment of the Headteacher, Deputy Headteacher and Clerk: to the Trustees

The Trustees are responsible for; setting general policy; adoptlng an annual School Improvement Plan and
budget; approving the statutory accounts; monitoring the Academy by the use of budgets and -other data; and
making major decisions-about the direction of the Academy and capitel expenditure in line with it's policies.

Although Trustees are involved in appointing senior staff, including a Headteacher, the decision of appointment
for all but the Deputy Headteacher has been delegated to the Headteacher and members of the Pay and
Recruitment Committees / Resources Committee and the Senior Leadership Team (SLT).

The Trustees have devolved responsibility for day to dey management of the Academy to the Headteacher and

SLT. The SLT comprises the Headteacher, Deputy Headteacher, Key Stage 2 Lead and, Inclusion and Pupil”

Support Lead. The SLT implement policies laid down by the Trustees and report back to them on performance.

Page 5
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TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

 Structure, governance and management (continued)

The Academy has a leadership structnre which consists of the Trustees, the SLT and Subject Leaders. The
leadership structure enables the devolution of appropriate responsibility and decision making at all levels.

The Headteacher and Resources Committee are responsible for the authorisation of spending within agreed
budgets, a summary of which is in the scheme of delegation / Finance Policy.

The Headteacher is the Accounting Officer.
g. Arkangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel
- The "governing body is committed to taking decisions in-accordance with the prineiples of justice, fairness,
. objectivity, openness and.accountability. It recognises the requirement for a fair and transparent policy to
- determine the pay and grading for all staff employed in the School, which takes account of the conditions of
servnce under Wthh staff are emp!oyed and relevant statutory requirements.
= The Pay Policy has been agreed by The Pay & Recruntment .Commlttee of the governing body following
consuitation with staff and the recognised trade unions. . Any changes of substance will be subject to further

consultation before amendment by the committee. The Pay & Recruitment Committee has full authority to take
decisions on behalf of the governing body on pay matters as defined in this policy.

h. Related parties and other connected charities and organisations -

_There are no related- part|es which either control or. significantly influence the decisions’and operations of St
Teresa's Catholic Primary School, except for the Bishop of Clifton who is the ultimate controlllng party by virtue
of holding the ability to appoint the majority of the Board of Trustees.

There are no sponsors or Formal Parent Teacher Association assomated with the Academy.
Objecti_ves and activities
a. Objects and aims

~ The object and activity of the Academy is to advance for the public beneflt and the Church, the education of
young people who will shape future society.

The alms of the Academy dunng the year ended 31 August 2021 were to

o Secure preserve and promote Catholic values.
e Provide a-broad ‘and balanced curriculum, including extra curricular opportunltles

. Develop pupils as effective learners. :

-+ . Ensure that every child enjoys the same high quality education in terms of resourcing, tuition and care.

- “Improve the effectiveness of the schooi by keeping the curriculum and organisational structure under
continual review.

. Maximise the number of pupils who achieve in line with or above natlonal expectatlons and ensure each
one achieves his/her poétential.

. Provide value for money for the taxpayer.

. Comply with all appropriate statutory and.curriculum requirements.

*  Maintain close links with partner schools. _

»  Develop the Academy’s capacity to manage change.

. Conduct the Academy s busmess in accordance with the hlghest standards of integrity, probity and
openness.

_'Page 6
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TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Objectives and activities (continued)

b. Objectives, strategies and activities-

St Teresa's is a mixed Catholic Primary school that has a capacity of 210 pupiis with year groups of 30 pupils
each. St Teresa's serves families within the Diocese of" Clifton including parts of Bristol and South
Gloucestershire. Our core mission is to provide a Catholic education that inspires our school family to excellence
in all our God given taIents where we Iet our lights shine for all to see.

We are committed to help the pupils we serve maximise their educational opportunity by using the resources at
our disposal as efficiently and effectively as possible. Our school vision is ‘Inspinng each other to excellence in
the light of Christ'. .

The school which has an improving and now excellent reputation for its academici perforrnence w_ae judged by .
Ofsted as an outstanding school and the Diocese to be an outstanding school in our Section 48 inspection.

The Board of Trustees continue to seek developments and |mprovements in-their, work on behalf of the pupils so .. -

that we remain outstanding in every area.

Applications for places annually far exceed the number available. There were 74,73, 82,118 & 76 applications for
the 30 piaces available in September 2017 - 2021 respectively. :

88% of our children are of Catholic background. There is a higher than average number of pupils who are from
minority ethnic groups, 77% in 2020/2021, and 57% of our pupils have English as an Additional Language. 11%
of pupils are known to be eligible for Free School Meals (Pupil Premium), which is lower than that the National.
average (Analyse School Performance report 2018). St Teresa’'s has an attendance rate of 97% with a 0. 2%
unauthorised absence rate in 2020/2021. : '

Within the school, 7.6% of our pupils with identified barriers to learning are on the Special Needs register. These
range from pupils with mild learning difficulties to those with statements/Educational Health & Care Plans
identifying special support requirements in order that the might more easily access mainstream curriculum
provision. These pupils are supported by Learning Support Assistants, our Inclusion and Pupil Support Leader
and external agencies as appropriate. .

Performance across the school is good or better and by the time children leave school at the end of Year 6, their
attainment in all subjects (reading, writing and maths and is 5|gn|f cantly above national’ (ASP Online Report
2019). ,

Ofsted in July 2016 judged the school to be Outstanding in aII areas, the report stated, ‘Pupils make outstanding
progress as they move through the school. By the time they leave at the end of key stage 2, pupils are extremely
well prepared for the next stage of their education.’

The report from our Diocesan Inspection in November 2017 where we were judged as ‘outstanding’ stated ‘The
school has outstanding governance and leadership, which sustains. and nurtures its vibrant Catholic life and
ethos ..." “The pupils’ behaviour in lessons and around the school is outstanding. They demonstrate real care
and respect for each other and have an open, positive attitude to learning.” ‘The pupils, particularly in the
chaplaincy team, make an excelient contribution towards Catholic life and the pupils’ response to the prayer life
of the school is outstanding.' ‘The achievement of pupils is outstanding due to good and outstanding teaching.’

The total numbers of employees, as from September 2021 is 41 including 14 teachers, 26 administration and
curriculum support personnel, caretaking, cleaning staff and 1 management.

Each year in order to bring about improvements and move towards achieving our vision, staff identify key

Page 7
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TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Objectives and activities (continued)
development areas based on self review and evaluations. These become foci for attention across the school.

“Key prlontles for the year are contained in our School Improvement Plan which is. available from the school
office.

'Improvement foci for this year include: .

L Oracy and communlcatlon

. 5 - Continuing to raise standards of achlevement across the curriculum and school particularly focusmg on
developing pupil’s skills, understanding and knowledge across a broad range of subjects. ..

+ ' Raising the number of pupils attaining greater depth in all year groups — in light of COVID-19 this

Ny improvement focus is on hold with a focus on ensuring children read ARE minimum by the end of the

: year.

'+ Improving the quality of teachlng and Iearnmg to ensure consistently good or better teachmg across the

* school through embedding a programme of peer to peer and personal support/coaching and all teachers

‘being responsive in planning.

. -Developing leaders of learning in classrooms, middie leaders and senior leaders.

. Continue to ensure there is an outstanding provision and learning experience for children in EYFS.

 c. Public benefit

In settlng our objectlves and planning our activities, the Trustees .have carefully considered the Charity.
Commlsswnsgeneral guidance on public beneflt S

The Trustees confirm that they have complied with the duty in Section 17(5) of the Charities Act 2011 to have
‘due regard to the Charity Commission's general guidance on public benefit in exercising their powers or duties.
They have referred to this guidance when reviewing the Academy's aims and objectives and in planning its future
activities. .

‘As an Academy we have a duty to support other schools. We work closely with schools within the Newman
Partnership, 10 Catholic primary schools and 1 Catholic secondary school, and have a committee structure of
Mission and Ethos, Standards and Quality and Resources which all report into the Newman board, made up of
Senior Leaders. The Newman partnership aim is ‘Working in partnership to ensure that all children in our =
-Catholic Schools are provided with the opportunity to realise their unique grft and are able to take thelr next
steps knowing how and when to use that gift for the common good.' - : .

“-n October 2021, St. Teresa's was approached by the diocese to support’ another catholic primary school in our
partnership, St. Francis. An emergency bid was applied for from the DfE to enable this support to take place.
The support commenced in January 2021 and continues .until December 2021."

Page 8
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: TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
2T FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Strategic report

Achievements and performance , N ' o S

\ _ ‘
" The Academy is just beginning its ninth year of operation and has maintained the forecast number of pupils. The

total number. of pupils in the year ended 31 August 2020 was 206. In the last.two years the Academy has -

experienced a higher level of mobility with children moving back home abroad or moving out of Bristol to secure’

lower cost housmg There are waiting lists 'in most year groups and the Academy actively seek to fill any
spaces.

‘r
{

N The Academy is heavily oversubscrlbed There were 76 applications for the 30 places avallable |n Receptlon |n:
: September 2021 . :

A ¢ . AR

PR

"SATs results continue to improve. In Summer 2019, pupils at all levels ‘achieved ‘outstanding results.
- Achievement both in terms of attainment and progress is significantly above national average by the time pupils
reach the end of their primary school (ASP 2019). This is a significant achievement for the school. No statutory
assessments as they were cancelled by the DfE in Summer (2020) dué to Covid-19. :

B . . : ) . . . Lt . T
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TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Strategic report (continued)

Achievements and performance (continued)

a. Resuits
| Year 2 Qutcomes School 2019 National 2019
|.Reading: 165.5% 75%
Reading (Gréater Depth) 20.7% ,
| Writing - 69% 69%
1 Writing (Greater Depth) °13.8% '
Mathematics 69% 76%
|_Mathematics (Greater Depth) 20.7% :
:Year 1 Phonics Screening _School 2019” .| National 2019
' 97% 82%
: - School 2019 National 2019
Reading: 94% 73%
. Reading Higher Standard 42% . 27%
: Reading ProgressVScore. 4.56 0.03
Writing (Expected) 97% 78%
Writing (Greater Depth) 32% 20%
| Writing Progress Score 4.4 0.03
{ English, ‘Grammar & Punctuation (EGAP) 96.8% 78%.
Engllsh ‘Grammar & Punctuation (EGAP) ' 83.9% '| 34%.
| Higher Staridatd. .
Mathemiatics 97% 79%
Mathematics Higher Standard 61% 27%
Mathematics Progress Score 6.8 N 0.03
| Reading, Writing. & Maths (combined)- 94% Y .0 1 65%e L. 7
' Reading, Writing & Maths (combmed) 23% T e | 11% 7 .
' Higher Standard . ww ' “,
| Average Scaled Score School 2019 National 2019
Reading 107.8 104
| English Grammar & Punctuation (EGAP) 115 106
Mathematics 109.9 105

Trustees and staff at St Teresa's are delighted with the fantastic achievements of our Year 6's in 2021. .

To ensure that teachers continue to develop and improve in their craft, the Academy operates a structured
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TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Strategic report (continued)
Achievements and performance (eontinued)

programme of monitoring and evaluating the quality teaching, learning and assessment cycle which includes
work sampling, pupil conferencung and lesson observations, which are undertaken by the SLT, Subject leaders
and external consultants. There is also a clear framework of peer to peer support and sharing good practice.

This also ensures that bést practice within the school is known and can be emulated by others thus reducing
disparity in performance across our school. : '

Continuing - professmnal development for teachers has been very.successful and. is a 5|gn|f icant contnbutor to
improved outcomes. . I . : ‘

b. Key performance indicators .

" The main financial performance indicator is the level of reserves held at the Balance Sheet date. In particular,
the management and spending -against the General Annual Grant (GAG) requires special attention to the
amount of carry forward. In the year under review, £132,327 was carned forward.

As funding is based on pupil numbers this is also a key performance indicator. Aged 4 11 pupils for 2020/2021
were 206. We are pleased that the Academy has maintained the pupil numbers at this level.

- Another key financial,performance indicator is the staffing costs as a percentage of total income (excluding
" restricted fixed asset). For 2021 this was 82.5% (2020: 82.8%) which is just above the optimum level
recommended by the EFSA. - .

c. Going concern

After making appropriate enquiries, the Board of Trustees has a reasonable expectation that the Academy has
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason they continue
to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements. Further details regardlng the adoptlon of
the going concern basis can be found in the accountmg poI|C|es

* Financial review

Most of the Academy’s income is obtained from the DfE via the EFSA in the form of recurrent grants, the use of _
which is'restricted to particular purposes. The grants received from the DfE during the year ended 31 August
' 2021 and the associated expenditure are shown as restricted Funds in the Statement of Financial Activities.

The Academy also receives grants for fixed assets from the DfE and these are shown in the Statement of
Financial Activities as restricted income in the Fixed Asset Fund. The Restricted Fixed Asset Fund balance is
reduced by annual depreciation charges over the useful life of the assets concerned, as defi ned in the
Academy’s Accounting Policies.

During the year ended 31 August 2021, total expendlture of £1,320, 265 (excludlng pensaon and restricted fixed
asset funds) was offset by recurrent grant funding from the DfE and other incoming resources of £1,186,105.
The excess of expenditure over income for the year (excluding restricted fixed asset funds) was £134,159. This
was planned non-recurring expenditure for a CIF safeguarding project, IT infrastructure and COVID recovery
support. It was covered by the balance of a CIF grant received in 2019/20 and reserves.

At 31 August 2021 the net book value of fixed assets was £157,456 and movements in tangible fixed assets are
showing in note 14 to the Financial Statements. The assets were used to.provide education and the assomated
support services to the pupils of the Academy.
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TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
- FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Strategic report (continued) - : {

Key financial pol|C|es adopted or rewewed during. the year include the Finance Pollcy whlch lays out the
framework for financial management, including financial responsibilities of the Board Headteacher and other
staff, as well as delegated authonty for spendlng

The Trustees have agreed a programme of internal checks on financial controls Internal Assurance checks are
_now undertaken by Romero and presented to the Resources Committee for review. . .

a. Reserves policy :

. The Frustees have determined that the appropriate level of reserves is two months annual expenditure,
approximately £187k. The Academy's current level of available reserves (unrestricted funds plus GAG carry
- forward) is £231,143. 2021/22 has planned reserves expendlture for COVID recovery support and development
‘of outdoor space.~ T T - vte T e s

*The Academys current level of urirestricted reserves is £98,816. The Trustees have agreed that the level of
reserves appropriate for a Single Academy Trust is 2 months of income.

: The defined benefit pension scheme reserve has a negatlve balance. The effect of the deficit position. of the
pension scheme is that the Academy is paying higher employers’ pension contributions over a period of years.
The higher employers’ pension contributions will be met from the’ Academy’s budgeted annual income. Whilst
the deficit will not be immediately eliminated, there should be no actual cash flow deficit on the fund, nor any
direct impact on the free reserves of the Academy.

b. Investment policy

Due to the. nature of funding, the Academy may. at times hold cash balances surplus to lts short term
requirements. The Trustees may considéer the opening of additional short term bank mvestment accounts to take
advantage of higher mterest rates No other form of investment is authorised. :

)
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ST TERESA‘S CATHOLIC PRIMARY SCHOOL BRISTOL
' (A Cémpany Limited by Guaravntee‘)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

c. Principal risks and uncertainties

The Board of Trustees has reviewed the major risks to which the Academy is exposed-together with the-
operating, financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks.

t

The principal risks and uncertainties facing the Academy are as follows:

Financial — the Academy has considerable reliance on continued Government funding through the EFSA. In the
last year 99% of Academy’s incoming resources were ultimately Government funded and whilst this level is
expected to continue, there is no assurance that Government policy or practice will remaln the same or that
public funding will continue at the same level or on the same terms. . .

Governance andlor management — the risk in thls area arises from 'potential failure to manage' effectively the
Academy’s finances, internal controls, compliance with regulations’ and legislation, statutory returns etc. The
Trustees continue to review and ensure that appropriate'measures are in place to mitigate these risks. :

Reputational —'the continuing success of the Academy is dependent on attracting applicants in sufficient
numbers. . To mitigate this risk Trustees ensure that pupit success and achievement are closely momtored and
revrewed so that we continue to achieve the highest educational standards .

Safeguarding and Child Protection — the Trustees continue to ensure that the highest standards are
maintained in the areas of selection and momtonng ‘of staff, the operation of child protection policies and
procedures, health and safety dlscrpllne

Staffing - the success of the Academy is reliant on apporntlng and malntalnrng quality staff. Trustees monitor
and review policies and procedures to ensure continued development and training of staff is a pnorlty so that
staff feel confident in thelr work and feel successful: Trustees also ensure there is clear succession planning in . ~
place. :

Fraud and management of funds — The Academy has appointed Romero to carry out checks on financial .
systems and records as required by the Academies Financial Handbook. Ali finance staff receive training to
keep them up to date with financial practice requirements and develop their skills in this area. The Headteacher
keeps an eye.-on the budget and is adept at seeking clarification on any fluctuations in spending.

The ‘Academy has continued to strengthen its Risk Management process throughout the year by improving the
process and ensuring staff awareness. A nsk register is maintained, reviewed and updated ona regular basis.

As hlghllghted previously, the Academy has agreed a Risk Management Strategy and a RISk Regrster These
have been discussed by Trustees and include the financial risk to the Academy. . .

The Trustees have implemented a number of systems to assess and minimise risks, including internal controls
-described elsewhere. Where significant financial risk still remains they have ensured they have adequate
insurance cover.

Whilst the Academy is oversubsCribed, risks to revenue funding from a falling roll are small. However, the freeze
on the Government's overall education budget, changing in funding arrangements for Higher Needs and
increasing employment and premises costs mean that budgets will be increasingly tight in coming years.

The Trustees examine the financial health formally every term, reviewing performance against budgets and
overall expenditure by means of regular update report at ali Full Governor’s and Resources committee' meetings.
Cash flow forecasts are used to ensure sufficient funds are available to cover all known and anticipated
commitments, as well as contingencies.

The Board of Trustees recognises that the defined benefit scheme deficit (Local Government Pension Scheme),
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TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

which is set out in note 24 to the Financial Statements, represents a significant potential liability. However, as
the Trustees consider that the Academy is able to meet its known annual contribution commltments for the
foreseeable future, the risk from this liability i is minimised.

.COVID-19 IMPACT _

January 2021 saw all schools close natlona|ly for the second consecutive academic year, St. Teresa's opened
for children of keyworkers with a rotation of staff on site and all other staff working from home. The school was
also able to welcome vulnerable pupils in during lockdown due to the maximum capacity of key worker children
not being met. All children accessed remote home learning throughout Term 3 and up to 8th March Term 4, with
the main platform for this being Google Classroom. . The school supported some families by providing
Chromebooks through the government IT scheme and the school buying 6 additional Chromebooks.
Throughout the year, many individual children and year groups. had to self-isolate inline with government
" guidance. -During these” times, the school remote Iearnmg procedure was |mplemented to ensure chlldren o
. contlnued to learn. 4 :

Fundraising

The Academy Trust does not use any external fundralsers AII fundralsmg undertaken durmg the year was
monitored by the Trustees. - :

Plans for future perlods

. The Academy will continue to strive to prowde outstanding education and to improve the .pen‘ormance of its
pupils and staff at.all levels. The Academy will maintain it stance that we attract high quality teachers and
" support staff in order to deliver its ob;ectlves : .

The Academy has formally agreed to collaborate with a hub of 11 Catholic schools, ‘Newman.Partnership’, to

improve the educational opportunities for pupils.in the.wider community. The Academy is in the process of
exploring the option of becoming a Multi Academy Trust with 3 other schools from the Newman Partnership,
those schools being St Bonaventure s, St Bernard’ s and St Francis.

We plan to maintain class sizes of no more than 30 with a Learning Support Assistant in each class, where
possmle WhICh will reflect in academic outcomes being' |mproved .
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- TRUSTEES"REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Auditors :

. - . ’ . N
Plans for future periods (continued) : ‘ )

Disclosure of information to auditors

v

lnsofar as the Trustees are aware:

o there is no relevant audit |nformat|on of which the charitable companys audltors are unaware, and
. that Trustees have taken.all steps that they ought to have taken to, make themselves aware of any
relevant audlt |nformat|on and to establlsh that the audltors are aware of that |nformat|on

BN

N e }

Y

The prewous auditors, - Bishop Flemlng LLP, W|thdrew their services in March 2021 and a resolution to appomt .

" new auditors Randall & Payne LLP was proposed and confirmed at the annual general meeting.

The auditors, Randall & Payne LLP, have mdrcated thelr willingness to contmue in- offce The deS|gnated
Trustees will propose a motion reappomtlng the auditors at a meeting of the Trustees o

The Trustees Report, mcorporatlng a strateglc report, was approved by order of the Board of- Trustees as the
company dlrectors on 2 December 2021 and signed on its behalf by:

C lzuka - . :
Chair of Trustees . ) o o L

: L ‘ S Page 15
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GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

Scope of responsibility

" As Trustees, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that St Teresa's Catholic Primary
School Bristol has an effective and appropriate system’of -control, financial and otherwise. However, such a
system is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can
provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance against material. misstatement or loss.

As Trustees, we have revrewed and taken account of the gurdance in DfEs Governance Handbook and
competency framework for governance .

The Board of, Trustees has delegated the day-to- day responsrbrlrty to the Headteacher, as accounting officer, for

“ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial management and
*in accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding agreement between St
‘Teresa's Catholic Primary School Bristol and the Secretary of State for Education. They are also responsible for
reporting to the Board of Trustees any materral weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control.
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GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUE'D) J

Governance

The lnformatron on governance included here supplements that described in the Trustees' Report and-in the
Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities. The Board of Trustees has formally met 5 times during the year

Attendance during the year at meetings of the Board of Trustees was as foIIows.

Trustee L Meetings attended - Outofa possible

P Thomas Vice Chair (resrgned 30 November LN o1 S L
. 2020)° i A ) e . . .
M Fauvet ' ' o
A Flaherty-Weeks (resrgned 31 July 2021)
S George . ) -
S Land, Headteacher . .
K McCarthy (resigned 12 January 2021)
R Sims
T Nicholas.
J Rawlinson (Staff Trustee)
S Thayer (Staff Trustee) -
C lzuka, Chair ~ . ' \
Father J Finan '
C Ukoha '

OCWRBRPOBNGWO O
N OO OO N OVO i’ n

Governors Self Evaluation and Review takes pIace annually. This takes place:
a) as part of a continuing partnership with the Local Authority, actrng as School Advrsory Service.
b) as part of the AGM with our members annually., _ L .. -y
The Resources Committee is a sub- commlttee of the main Board of Trustees. Its purpose is to assist the .
decision making of the Board of Trustees, by enabling more detailed consideration to be given to the best means
_ of fulfilling the Board of Trustees' responsibilities to ensure sound management of the Academy’s ﬁnances and
resources, including proper planning; monitoring and probity. It also incorporates the .role of a Risk and Audit
Committee to maintain an oversight of the Academy Trust's financial, governance, risk management and internal
control systems to report findings termly and annually to the Trust Board and the Accounting Officer as a critical
element of the trust's annual reporting requirements. To make appropriate comments and recommendation on
such matters to the Board of Trustees on a regular basis. Major issues will be referred to the full Board of
Trustees for ratification. ~ S L ) SN

N v - ey

Attendance during the year at meetings was as follows: _ v o Lo
Trustee . - : ) * Meetings attended. -~ Out-oja possible

M Fauvet ’

. A Flaherty-Weeks (resrgned 31 July 2021)
S George

. Clzuka - -
‘R Sims _ .

P Thomas (resigned 30 November 2020)

NOBN O
NGO O O
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GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

" Review of value for money

As accounting officer, the Headteacher has responsibility for ensuring that the Academy delivers good value in
the use of public resources. The accounting officer understands that value for money refers to the educational
- and wider societal outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received.

"“The accounting officer considers how the Academy’s use of its resources has provided good value for money
during each academic year, and reports to the Board of Trustees where value.for money can be improved,
including the use of benchmarking data where appropriate. The accounting officer for the Academy has
delivered improved value for money during the year by:

¢ The Resources Committee monitor, evaluate,-review and challenge performance in relation to financial

. /- management and risk, to ensure effectiveness of spending and compllance with reporting, regulatory and
internal financial control; ’

« . During 2020/2021 the Academy made savings through adhering to this polrcy and contmurng |t s
membership of the CPC and Church Market Place;

. The Academy monitors outgoings carefully to ensure best value in all areas of purchasmg and
’ procurement, noting that this is not necessarily the cheapest quote; and
e The Academy continues to work collaboratively with others in the Newman Partnership to reduce

procurement costs.
The purpose of the system of internal control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of
failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives. It can, therefore, only provide reasonable and not absolute
“assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an on-going process designed to identify
and prioritise the risks to the achievement of Academy policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of
those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and
economlcally The system of internal control has been in place in St Teresa's Catholic Primary School Bristol for
the year 1 September 2020 to 31 August 2021 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial
statements

Capacity to handle risk

The: Board of Trustees has rewewed the key risks to whrch the Academy is exposed together with the operatrng
. financial and compliance controls that have -been implemented to mitigate those risks. The Board of Trustees is
- of the view that there is a formal ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the Academy's
-+ -significant risks that has been in place for the year 1 September 2020 to 31 August 2021 and up to the date of

-approval of the annual report and financial statements. This process is regularly reviewed by the Board of
Trustees. .

The risk and control framework *
: The Academy’s system of internal fi nancral control is based on a framework of regular management information

and administrative procedures mcludnng the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and accountablllty
In particular, it includes: :

. comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and penodlc financial reports
~ which are reviewed and agreed by the Board of Trustees
. regular reviews. by the Finance and General Purposes Committee of reports which mdrcate financial
. performance against the forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure
programmes .
. setting targets to measure financial and other performance
e - clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines
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-GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

The risk and control framework (continued)
o identification and management of risks
The Board.of Trustees has decided to buy-in an internal audit service from Romero Services

The reviewer's role includes glvmg advice on financial and other matters and performrng a range of checks on
the Academy's financial systems In particular, the checks carried out in the current perrod mcluded

Review of the income system;

Review of the payroll system; _ et e e UM
Review of the expenditure system; L e e e L
Review of the fixed asset system;-and T LR :
Review of the accounting system. ’ Ly

On a semi-annual basis, the reviewer reports to the Board of Trustees on the operation of the systems of control - -

-and on the discharge of the Board of Trustees' financial responsibilities and annually prepares a short annual
summary report to the committee outlining the areas reviewed, key flndlngs recommendatlons and- conclusrons
to help the commrttee consider actions and assess year on year progress. .

During the year, Romero have dellvered their schedule of work as planned and there were no materlal control )
issues as a result of the auditors' work.

Review of effectlveness

As accountlng officer, the Headteacher has responsibility for reviewing the effectlveness of the system of internal ‘

control. During the year in question the review has been informed by A » .

.- the work of the reviewer; .
o the work of the external auditors;
e the work of the executive managers within the Academy who have responsrbrllty for the development and‘

maintenance of the lnternal control framework.

The accountlng officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of internal
control by the Resources Committee and a pIan to address weaknesses and ensure contlnuous lmprovement of i
the system |s in.place. ' 4 :

Appro\/ed by order of the members of the Board of Trustees on 2 December 2021 and signed on. their behalf by:

C lzuka . 8 Laind o
Chair of Trustees Accounting Officer
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STATEMENT ON REGULARITY, PROPRIETY AND COMPLIANCE

.As accountlng officer of St Teresa's Catholic Primary School Bristol | have considered my responsibility to notlfy
the ‘Academy Board of Trustees and the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of material irregularity,
impropriety and non-compliance with terms and conditions of all funding received by the Academy, under the
funding agreement in place between the Academy and the Secretary of State for Education. As part of my
consideration | have had due regard to the requirements of the Academies Financial Handbook 2020.

1 confirmi that | and the Acaderny Board of Trustees are able to ldentlfy any material irregular or improper use of
all funds by the.Academy, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of fundmg under the
Academy’s fundlng agreement and the Academles Financial Handbook 2020. '

I confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety of funding non- compllance have been discovered
‘to date. If any instances are |dent|ﬂed after the date of this statement ‘these wall be notified to the Board of
Trustees and ESFA.

‘S Land: .
‘Accounting Officer A
Date: 2 December 2021
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ST TERESA'S CATHOLIC PRIMARY SCHOOL BRISTOL
* (A Company Limited by Guarantee) -

. STATEMENT OF TRUSTEES' RESPO.NSIBIL'ITIESA n
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021 °

The Trustees (who are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are
responsible for preparing the Trustees' Report and the financial statements in accordance with the Academies:
Accounts Direction published by the .Education and Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting
Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under company law,
the Trustees must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the charitable company and of its incoming resources and application of resources,
including its income and expenditure, for that period. In prepanng these financial statements, the Trustees are
required to: -

e select suitable accountmg poInmes and then apply them consustently,

. observe the methods and principles of the Charltles SORP 2019 and the Academles Accounts Direction
2020 to 2021;

» - make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent; .

. state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any materlal departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

. prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless itis mappropnate to presume that the
charitable company: will continue in business. -

" The Trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufﬂcient_te show and éxplain
the charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of
the charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act
2006. They are also responsible.for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company applies
financial and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial
management. They are also responsible for ensurmg grants received from ESFA/DfE have been applied for the
purposes mtended :

i

The Trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information
included on the charitable company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparatlon and -
dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees on 2 December 2021 and signed on its behalf by:

S Land
“Accounting Officer
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ST TERESA’S CATHOLIC PRIMARY SCHOOL BRISTOL
(A Company Limited by Guarantee) '

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF ST
TERESA'S CATHOLIC PRIMARY SCHOOL BRISTOL

. Opinion

We have audited the-financial statements of St Teresa's Catholic Primary School Bristol (the ‘academy') for the
year ended 31 August 2021 which comprise the Statement of Financial Activities, the Balance Sheet, the
Statement of Cash Flows and the related notes, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The
financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is-applicable law, United Kingdom
Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including Financial Reporting

Standard 102 'The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland’, the Charities * *

SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Dlrectlon 2020 to 2021 issued by the Education and Skills Funding
Agency :

~ In our opinion the financial statements: ’

¢ . give a true and fair view of the state of the Academy's affairs as at 31 August 2021 and of its incoming
resources and application of resources,-including its income and expenditure for the year then ended;
. have been ‘properly prepared in accordance W|th United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accountlng
Practice; and )
.~ “"have been prepared in accordance with the requwements of the Companles Act 2006, the Charities SORP
’ * 2019 and the Academles Accounts Direction 2020 to 2021 issued by the Education and Skills Fundlng
Agency.

Basis. for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable -
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' responsibilities for the audit
. of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Academy in accordance with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the United Kingdom, including
the Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit ewdence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our oplnlon : .

_ Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Trustees' use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

-Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or

- conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt.on the Academy's ability to-continue as a

.going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

.Our respon5|b|ht|es and the responsibilities of the Trustees with respect to gomg concern are descrlbed in the
relevant sections of this report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF ST
TERESA'S CATHOLIC PRIMARY SCHOOL BRISTOL (CONTINUED) .- :

Emphasis of matter

The Governing Body of St Teresa's Catholic School Bristol made the decision during the year to consult with all
stakeholders about joining The Cardinal Newman Catholic Educational Trust. The application has been
approved by the Regional Schools Commissioner for the South West and the Trust is scheduled to transfer to
The Cardinal Newman Catholic Educational Trust on 1 March 2022. As such, the educational actlvmes of the
Academy will transfer as a going concern, however this entlty will cease to exist.

Other information

The other information . comprises the information included in the Annual Report. other than the financial
statements and our Auditors' Report thereon. The Trustees are responsible for the .other information contained
within the Annual Report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and,
.except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do-not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon. Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the

- audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent
“material misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the
financial statements themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. : .

We have nothing to report in this regard. ) ¢
Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

. the information given in the Trustees' Report including the Strategic Report for the financial year for which
. the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.
e . the Trustees' Report and the Strategic Report have been prepared in ‘accordance with applicable legal

requirements.
. : e
Matters on which we are required to report by exception

" In the light of our krrowledge and understanding of the Academy and its environmerrt obtained in the course of
the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Trustees' Report including the Strateglc Report

We have nothing to report in respect of the foIIowmg matters in relation to whrch the Companies Act 2006
_requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

J ‘adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been

received from branches not visited by.us; or _
. the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or”
. certain disclosures .of Trustees" remuneration specified by law are not made; or
. we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF ST
TERESA'S CATHOLIC PRIMARY SCHOOL BRISTOL (CONTINUED)

Responsibilities of trustees

".- As explained more fully in the Trustees' Respon5|bllltles Statement, the Trustees (who are also the directors of
the Academy for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements .
and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Trustees determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether-
due to fraud or error. - :

In ‘preparing the financial statements, the Trustees are responsible for assessing the Academy's ability to-

continue as a-going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going . .

“concern basis of accountlng unless the Trustees either intend’ to Ilqmdate the Academy or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so. :

Auditors' responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements -
. Our 6bjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
-. from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an Auditors' Report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in" -
accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
~from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the. aggregate, they could reasonably be ..
- expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures
in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities,
including fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detectlng irregularities, including fraud is
detailed below: .

-We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that are applicable to the Academy.
- These include but are not limited to compliance with the Companies Act 2006, Financial Reporting Standard
applicable in the UK, the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Dlrectlon 2020 to 2021 issued by
the Educatlon and Skills Funding Agency;

- we agreed the financial statement disclosures to supportlng documentatlon
- - we made enquiries of management; and -
- we reviewed board minutes throughout the year.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Council's website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our
Auditors' Report. .
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF ST
TERESA'S CATHOLIC PRIMARY SCHOOL BRISTOL (CONTINUED)

Use of our report - ' L

This report is made solely to the Academy‘s members, as a body, in accordance wrth Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Academy's members
those matters we are required to state to them in an Auditors' Report and for no other purposé. To the fullest-
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Academy and its
members, as a body, for our audlt work for this report or for the oplnlons we have formed

Ryar\ Moore CA (Senior Statutory Auditor)

e e e D e e S e T e

for and on behalf of —-— —~ ———-=- -
Randall & Payne LLP -

Chargrove House ) e N

-$hurdio§ton Road = . - S - ~

" Cheltenham

Glo_ucestershire .
GL51 4GA

’ . ’ . . . N —

15 December 2021 L . J -
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INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO ST
TERESA'S CATHOLIC PRIMARY SCHOOL BRISTOL AND THE EDUCATION AND SKILLS FUNDING
.AGENCY

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 10 September 2021 and further to the requirements
of the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2020 to
2021, we have carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed
and income received by St Teresa's Catholic Primary School Bristo! during the year 1°September 2020 to 31
August 2021 have been applied to the purposes identified by Parliament and the financial transactions conform
to the authorities whlch govern them.

This report is made solely to St Teresa's Catholic Primary School Bristol and ESFA in-accordance with the terms
.of our engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to St Teresa's Catholic Primary
~. School Bristol and ESFA those matters we are required to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the
fullest -extent permitted by law, we do not accept or-assume responsibility to anyone other than St Teresa's
Catholic Primary School Bristol and ESFA, for our work, for this report, or. for the conclusion we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of St Teresa's Cathollc Prlmary School Bristol's accountlng officer
and the.reporting accountant

iThe accounting officer is responsible, under the requirements of St Teresa's Catholic Primary Schoo! Bristol's
funding agreement with the Secretary of State for Education dated 18 December 2012 and the Academies
““Financial Handbook, extant from 1 September 2020, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income
received is applied for the purposes lntended by -Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the
. authorlttes which govern them. : _ . . ) '

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession's ethical
guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the
requirements of the Academies Accounts Direction 2020 to 2021. We report to you whether anything has come -
" to our attention in carrying out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and
income received during the year 1 September 2020 to. 31 August 2021 have not been applied to purposes
intended by Parliament or that the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Approach

We conducted our engagement in accordanee ‘with the Framework and Guide for External Auditors and
Reporting Accountant of Academy Trusts issued by ESFA. We performed a Itmlted assurance engagement as
defined in our engagement letter.

- The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain mformatlon and
explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropnate evidence to express a negative conclusion on ’
regularity.

A limited assurance: engagement is .more limited in scope than a reasonabte assurance engagement and
" consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of ali significant matters that
might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basns of evidence relevant to the regulanty and propriety of the
Academy's income and expendlture
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INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO ST
TERESA'S CATHOLIC PRIMARY SCHOOL BRISTOL AND THE EDUCATION & SKILLS FUNDING
_AGENCY (CONTINUED) '

Conclusion
In the course of our work, nothing -has come to .our attention - which suggest in' all material respects tﬁe
expenditure disbursed and income received during the year 1 September 2020 to 31 August 2021 has not been

applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactlons do not conform to the authorities which
govern them. .

el 7 Puge 140

Randall & Payne LLP

- Chargrove House

Shurdington Road -
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
GL51 4GA

Date: 15 December 2021

Page 27



P A

¥ )\@ ﬁ’ﬁ c} ‘

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES (INCORPORATING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT)
: FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021 e

' e Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted fixedasset - ~  Total - Total
funds funds - funds funds funds.
2021 2021 2021 - 2021 2020
; Note £ . £ ' £ : £ £
income from: '
Donations and capltal . . . =
grants 3 - 405 6,329 6,734 157,341
Other tradlng actlvmes ) 250 _ ) Co- ST L 250 ' ,167 ‘
Investments T 6 ™ I $ 39 : 168
" “Charitable activities 2,446 1,182,965 . - . 1185411 1,071,154
e . N © 2,735 1,183,370 6,329 1,192,434f A 1,228,830

. Total income . :

~ Expenditure on: : e o S /

" "Charitable activities 8 1,218 1,386,047 - 29,499 -1,416,764 1,183,828
o~ 1,218 1,386,047 29,499 1,416,764 1,183,828
Total expenditure - . : )
Net : 4 y ‘ . ' :
income/(expenditure) - 1,517 (202,677) - (23,470)  (224,330) 45,002
Transfers between . . : . X : : . L .
funds 18 (317) . 92,745 (92,428) - -
Net movement in - : R
funds before other
recognised , - : ) : : —
gains/(losses) 1,200 "~ (109,932) (115,598) - (224,330) .. 45002
Other recognised ' ‘ ‘ o
gains/(losses): .

Actuarial (losses)/gains . }

on defined benefit - ) B .

pension schemes - 24 - (1 07,000) - (107,000) 27,000

;‘letdmovement in / 1,200 - (216,932) (115,598) (331,330) 72,002

unds . .
Reconciliation of

funds: ]

Total funds brought N : .

forward 97,615 . (652,542) 266,429 (288,498) (360,500)
Net movement in funds 1,200 (216,932) (115,598) (331,330) - 72,002 -
Total funds carried - 98815 (869,474) 150,831 (619,828) . (288,498)

- forward

-

The Statement of Financial Activities includes all gains and losses recognised in the year.

The fiotes on pages 32 to 61 form part of these financial statements.
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oL -, . . BALANCE SHEET

S ~ AS AT 31 AUGUST 2021 .
2021 2020
. Note . £ £
Fixed assets
Tangible assets . . . 14 157,456 157,927 .
. , ' ) 157,456 157,927
Current assets - _ A
Debtors . . - . 15 . 56,509 . 156241 .,
Cash atbankandinhand ~ ~ * ' 320,509 -396,756 '
, - 377,018 552,997

‘ Creditors: amounts falling due within one o .
year ._ Lt . . 16 . (102,001) . (119,797) - .

Net current assets. ©275,017° . 433,200
Total assets less current liabilities 432,473 591,127
Creditors: amounts falling due after more . .
than one year - . L - 17 -(5,300) (6,625) -
Net assets excluding pension liability 427473 © 584502 .
.Defined benefit pension scheme liability * , 24 (1,047,000)‘ . .(873,000)
Total net assets (619,827) (288,498) :
Funds of the Academy . . '

Restricted funds: ' ‘ L : )

Fixed asset funds 18 150,831 ;.. 266429 .

Restricted income funds 4 18 177,526 220,458

Restricted funds excluding pens'ion asset 18 © 328,357 ’ _486,887
" Pension reserve ' : . 18 . (1,047,000) (873,000) - )

N . ‘ .I\. . - - N } B

~ Total restricted funds ' i 18 (718,643) (386,113} ~

Unrestricted income funds ) 18 98,816 97,615

Total funds " (619,827) ' (288,498)

2\
% : } X
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BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2021

The financial statements have beén prepared in accordance with the provisions appllcable to entltles subject to
the small companies regime. .

. “The financial statements on pages 28 to 61 were approved by the Trustees, and- authorised for issue on 02
~ December 2021 and are S|gned on their behalf,-by: . :

' C Iiuka -

Chair of Trustees ‘

S Land
" Accounting Officer

The‘ndtés‘: dn pagés 32 to 61 form part of these ﬁnancial statements. .
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- it ol . b
. ~STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021
' L 2021 2020
.- Note £ ‘£
-Cash flows from operating activities ’

Net cash used in operating activities . 20 ’\(53,587) .- . (413

Cash flows from investing activities 21  (22,660) . 57,503

. Change in cash and cash equivalents in the year A (76,247) - 57,090
. Cash and cash equiyﬁalehts“fat'thé beginning of the year 396,756 a .é: ' 339666 ‘

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 22,23 . 320,509 P 396, 756

" The notes on pages 32 to 61 form part of these financial statements
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~-NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - .
FOR THE YEAR'ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

1. Accountlng policies

A summary of the prlncupa( accountlng policies adopted (which have been apphed consistently,
- except where noted), judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below.

1.1 Basis of preparation of financial statements

. The fnanmal statements of the Academy which is a publlc benefit entity under FRS 102, have been
L prepared under the histori¢ cost convention in accordance with the Financial Repoiting. Standard
: Applicable in the UK ‘and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Accountlng -and Reporting by Charities:
Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance
with the Financial Reportlng Standard applicable in the UK and Republic’ of Ireland (FRS 102)
(Charities SORP (FRS 102)), the Academies Accounts D|rect|on 2020 to 2021 issued by ESFA the

Charities Act 2011 and the Companles Act 2006 .

St Teresa's Catholic Primary School antol meets the deﬁmtlon of a publlc benefit entlty under FRS
102

" 1.2 Going eohi:er‘n ‘

The Trustees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate i.e. Whether there are any.
material uncertainties related to events or condltlons that may cast significant doubt on the ability of
‘the Academy to continue as a going concern. The Trustees make this assessment in respect of a

~ period of at least one year from the date of authorisation for issue of the financial statements and

" have concluded that the Academy has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for
the foreseeable future and there are no material uncertalntles about the Academy's ability to continue
as a going concern, thus they continue to adopt the going concern baS|s of accountlng in preparing
the financial statements : ‘
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

1. Accounting policies (continued)

13

14

Income

All incoming resources are recognised when the Academy has entltlement to the funds, the receipt is
probable and ‘the amount can be measured reliably.

Grants

Grants are included in the Statement of Financial Activities on a receivable basis. The balance of
income received for specific purposes but not expended during the period is_shown in the relevant

_funds on the Balance Sheet. Where income is received in advance of meeting any performance-

related conditions there is not unconditional entitlement to the income and its recognition is deferred
and included in creditors as deferred income until the performance-related ¢onditions are met. Where
entitiement occurs before income is received, the income is accrued:

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the Statement of Financial Activities in the year for which
it is receivable and any abatement in respect of the year is deducted from income and recognised as
a liability.

Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional entitement to the grant. Unspent
amounts of capital grants are reflected in the Balance Sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital
grants are recognised when there is entltlement and are not deferred over the life of the asset.on
which they are expended

Donations

Donations are recognised on a receivable basis (where there are no performance-related condltlons)
where the recelpt is probable and the amount can be reliably measured.

Other income

Other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the year it is recelvable and to the extent
the Academy has provided the goods or services.

Expenditure

Expenditure is recogmsed Onoe there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit
to a third party, it is probable that.a transfer of economic benefits will be required in settiement and
the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs
of each activity are made up of the total of direct costs and shared costs, including support costs
involved in undertaking each activity. Direct costs attributable to a single activity are allocated directly
to that activity. Shared costs which contribute to more than one activity and support costs which are
not attributable to a single activity are apportioned between those activities on a basis consistent with
the use of resources. Central staff costs are allocated on the basis-of time spent, and depreciation
charges allocated on the portion of the asset's use.

Charitable actlvmes :
These are costs incurred on the Academy's educatlonal operatlons including support costs and costs

relating to the governance of the Academy apportioned to charitable activities.

All resources expended are-inclusive of irrecoverable VAT.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

1.

Accounting policies (continued)

1.5

1.6

1.7

Interest receivable

Interest on funds held on deposit is included when receivable and the amount can be meésdred
reliably by the Academy; this is normally upon notifi catlon of the interest pald or payable by the
institution with whom the funds are deposited.

Tangible fixed assets

Assets costing £5 000 or more are capltallsed as tanglble fixed assets and are carrled at cost, net of
depreCIanon and any provision for |mpa|rment :

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specnf c grants, either from the
government or from the prlvate sector, they are included in the Balance Sheet at cost and
depreciated over their expected useful economic life. Where there are specific conditions attached to
the funding requiring the continued use of the asset, the related grants ‘are credited to a restricted
fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial Activities and carried forward in the Balance Sheet.
Depreciation on the relevant assets is charged directly to the restricted fixed asset fund in the
Statement of Financial Activities. Where tangible fixed assets have been acqunred with unrestricted
funds depremahon on such assets is charged to the unrestricted fund.

Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets other than freehold land and assets under
construction, at rates calculated to write off the cost of each asset on a straight-line basis over its,
expected useful life, as follows:

- Depreciation is provided on the following bases:

Furniture and equipment - straight line over 7 years
Fixtures and fittings - straight line over 10 years
Computer equipm_ent - straight line over 5 years

The Academy occupies land and buildings provided to it by the Diocesan Trustees under a license
(also referred to as a Church Supplemental Agreement). Having considered the fact that the
Academy occupies the land and buildings by a license that transfers to the Academy no rights or
control over the site other than that of occupying it at the will of the Diocesan Trustees under the
agreement, it has been concluded that the value of the land and bunldlngs occupied by the Academy
will not be recognised or valued within fixed assets. .

A review for impairment of a flxed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying’
value of fixed assets and their recoverable amounts are recognised as-impairments. Impairment
losses are recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities. ‘ .

Debtors

Trade and other debtors are recognised at the settlement amount after any trade discount offered.

Prepayments are valued at the amount prepald net of any trade dlscounts due.

1.8

Cash at bank and in hand

Cash at bank and in hand includes cash and short-term highly liquid investments with a short maturity
of three months or less from the date of acquisition or-opening of the deposit or similar account.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
. FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

.

- Accounting policies (continued)
1.9 Liabilities

Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the Balance Sheet date as a result of a past
event, it is probable that a transfer of economic beriefit will be required in settlement, and the amount
of the settlement can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the Academy
anticipates it will pay to settle the debt or the amount it has received as advanced payments for the
goods or services it must provide. :

1.10 Financial inst'ruments

 The Academy only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102. The'fnanCIaI assets and
ﬁnanmal liabilities of the Academy and their measurement bases are as follows:

F/nanCIa/ assets - trade and other debtors are basic fi nanmal instruments and are debt mstruments
measured at amortised cost as detailed in note 15. Prepayments are not financial instruments.

- Cash at bank is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value.

Financial liabilities - trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are
" measured at amortised cost as detailed in notes 16 and 17. Taxation and social security are not
included in the financial instruments: disclosure definition. Deferred income is not deemed to be a
- financial liability, as the cash settlement has already taken place and there is an obligation to deliver
services rather than cash or another financial instrument.

1.11.Operating leases

Rentals paid under operatlng leases are charged to the Statement of Financial Actlvmes on a straight
line basis over the lease term. :
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Accounting policies (continued)
1.12 Pensions

Retirement benefits to employees of the Academy are provided by the Teachers' Pension Scheme
("TPS") and the Local Government Pension Scheme ("LGPS").. These are defined benefit schemes.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions. are calculated so as to spread the cost of

~ pensions over employees’ working lives with the Academy in such a way that the-pension cost is a
substantially level percentage. of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are
determined by the Government Actuary on the basis of quadrennial valuations using a. prospective
unit credit method. TPS is an unfunded muiti-employer scheme with no underlying assets to assign
between employers. Consequently, the TPS is treated as a defined contribution scheme for
accounting purposes and the contributions recognisedin the period to which they relate.

‘ «  The LGPS is a funded multi-employer scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the
Academy in separate trustee administered.funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value
and liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis ‘using the projected unit credit method and
discounted at a rate equivalent to the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of
equivalent term and currency to the liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially
and are updated at each Balance Sheet date. The amounts charged to operating surplus are the
current service costs and the costs of scheme introductions, benefit changes, settiements and
curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs as incurred. Net interest on the net defined
benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities and comprises the
interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme assets, calculated
by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate used to
discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the interest income on the scheme assets
and the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised in other recognised gains and losses.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses.
1.13 Fund accounting '

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the
charitable objects of the Academy at the discretion of the Trustees. .

Restricted fixed asset funds are reéources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes
imposed by the funders where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other réstricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the
funder/donor and include grants from the Department for Education Group. .

Investment income, gains and losses-are allocated to the appropriate fund.
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- NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS .
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

’
AN

l 2. Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgment

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other,
factors, ‘including expectatlons of future events that are believed to be. reasonable under the
circumstances.

Crmcal accountmg estimates and assumptions:

-
~

The Academy-makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates and assumptions will; by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
. assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrylng amounts of
) . assets and liabilities within the next fi nancial year are.discussed below.

» .The present value of the Local Governmént Pension Scheme defned benefit liability depends on a
- y " number of factors that are' determined on an actuarial basis using a variéty of assumptions. The
assumptions. used in determining the net cost or income for pensions Iinclude the discount rate. Any
,", changes in these assumptions, which are disclosed in note 24, will impact the_ carrying amount of the
. . - pension liability. Furthermore a roll forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial
: - valuation performed at 31’ March 2019 has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensnons liability at 31
August 2021. Any differences between the figures derived from the roll forward approach and a fuN
actuarlal valuation would |mpact on the carrylng amount of the’ pensnon Ilablllty :

i

. ) -.5. . Iricbme from donations and capifal grants
. . : AN ' )
~ : ~ Restricted: o
Restricted fixed asset Total ~
funds funds funds
2021 2021 2021
£ £ £
3. : , :
. Donations - B ) 405 - 405
Capital Grants . ' e . - 6,329 6,329
g 405 - 6,329 - 6,734
oo Re.strfcted T
Restricted  fixed asset = Total
—~ , funds - funds - funds
2020 2020. 2020
o : . £ £ £
Donations - : ~ 3589 - 3,589
" Capita! Grants . : - 153,762 , 153,752
S, 3,589 153,752 . 157,341
. )
/
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

4. Funding for the Academy's Education-

Total

Unrestricted Restricted
funds funds funds-
2021 2021 2021
£ - £ £
DfE/ESFA grants - - - . .
General Annual Grant (GAG) o ‘ - . - 913,454 913,454
Other DfE/ESFA grants e T . ‘ i
. Other DfE/ ESFA grants T o 58,330 58,330
" UIFSM : - S o - 31,567 31,567
Pupil Premium S - . 27,430 127,430
.+ High Needs L = - 43,184 43,184
Other income -, - o N _ 2,446 . 109,000 111,446
2,446 1,182,965 1,185,411
2,446 - 1,182,965 . 1,185,411
/
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" NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Funding for the Academy's Education (continued)

Unrestricted Restricted Total
funds funds funds
2020 - 2020 2020 -
| £ £ £
.DfE/ESFA grants N
General Annual Grant (GAG) - 913,340 913,340
Other DfE/ESFA grants ' R s :
Other DfE/ ESFA grants -~ o - 60,024 60,024
UIFSM , ' -t 31,683 31,683
- Pupil Premium - - : - - .21,413 21,413
High Needs - _ ‘ » . S 20503 © 20,503
) Other government grants: non éapital : ‘ - : 10,309 - 10,309
" Internal catering income, S 165 . - . 165
Salesto students - - . | 5915 " .- 591
Music income N 3276 . - 3,276
Other income ' 3,325 - 6,524 9,849
7,357 . 1,063,796 1,071,153
7,357 - 1,063,796 1,071,153

Following the reclassification in the Academies Accounts Direction 2020/21 of some grants received from
the Department of Education and ESFA, the academy's funding for Universal infant Free School Meals
.and Pupit Premium is no longer reported under the Other DfE Group grants heading, but as separate lines

under the Other DfE/ESFA grants heading. The prior year numbers have been reclassified..

income from other trading activities

Unrestricted

funds -

2021
£

Lettings - - ' 250

Total -
funds
2021

250
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Income from other trading activities (continued)

-Lettings

Investment income

Bank interest

Bank interest

Expenditure -

Edﬁqation '

Direct costs

Allocated support costs

Unrestricted

161,603 276,880

Total

" funds funds

2020 2020

£ £

167 167

. Unrestricted Total

funds ~funds

2021 2021

£ £

39 39

Unrestricted Total

funds funds

2020 2020

£ - £

168 168

'Staff Costs Premises Other Tdtal

2021 2021 . 2021 2021

£ £ £ ‘ £

801,139 - . 72,069 873,208

177,142 161,603 204,811 543,556
978281

1,416,764
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
- FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

2021 ",

7. Expendithre (continued)
Staff Costé Premises Other Total
2020 2020 . . 2020 .~2020.
£ £ £ £
e ! '
Education
Direct costs : 716,677 B 49,546 .766,223'
Allocated support costs - , 175,869 67,108 1 174,628 - 417,605
‘ 892,546 67,108 - .- 224,174 -.1,183,828 . . .
8. Anélysié_ of expenditure on charitable activities ‘
_ Summary by fu.nd’type ; 2 """
" Unrestricted’  Restricted " Total
funds - funds funds
.2021.. 2021 2021
S g e
"~ Education ) 1218 1,415,546 © 1,416,764
’ Unrestricted  Restricted Total
funds funds funds
© 2020 ¢ . T 2020 2020
£ £ £
.Education - .56.9 1,183,259 1,183,828
9. . Analysis of expenditure by activities S
Activities ;
undertaken . Support . -~ Total
N dlrectly .. " costs .. funds.
2021 i 2021
£ £ £
. Education 873,208 543,556 . 1,416,764 -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL,STATEM-ENTS
" FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

* Education

Analysis of expenditure by activities (continued)

Activities

undertaken
directly
2020

£

766,223

'Analysis of direct costs

. Staff costs '
- 'Educational supplies

Staff development -
Educational visits, music tuition and other costs

... Staff costs

. Educational supplies ~  +
- Staff development

Educational visits, music tuition and other-costs

Support Total
costs funds
2020 2020

£ £

417,605 1,183,828 -

. Total

Activities funds
2021 2021
£ £

801,139 801,139

55,470 55,470

11,444 11,444
5,155 5,155

873,208 873,208
Total

Activities funds
2020 2020

£ £

716,677 716,677

© 30,071 '30,071

6,644 6,644
12,831 12,831

. 766,223 766,223

P
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Analysis of expenditure by activities (continued)

Analysis of support costs

Pension finance costs
Staff costs
Depreciation

- Other costs
Recruitment and support
Maintenance of premises
Cleaning
Rent and rates
Energy costs . .
Insurance _
Security and transport

" Catering
Technology costs
Legal and professional
Bank charges -

Total .

Activities funds’
2021 2021
£ -
16,000 16,000,
177,142 177,142
29,499 29,499
34,066 34,066
1,530 1,530
. 143,388 143,388
18,215 18,215
4,381 4,381
11,067 11,067
13,526 "13,526
13,291 3,291
36,840 36,840
36,850 36,850
17,697 17,697
64 64
543,556 543,556
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9. AnaIyS|s of expenditure by actlvmes (contmued)

AnaIyS|s of support costs (continued) ' . . . S
\ .
Total
Activities funds
2020 . 2020
£ £
-Pension finance costs o _ T . .14,000 14,000 -
T oStaff costs . ’ . 176,869 . 175,869
- "Depreciation L o ' : S 30,593 30,593
- Other costs : . _— © ‘18,710 18,710
“‘Recruitment and support - . . 1,090 1,090
I - Maintenance of premises_" N - 52,860 - 62,860
Cleaning . - 14248 14,248
.Rent and rates . - B ) . : . ' 5,169 5,169
Energy costs .~ . - o ' .. 8605 . 8,605
Insurance I . . ' 14,475 14,475
Security and transport - ' : _ 4 : v 2,087 2,087
‘Catering . - 4 ) ( ' 35,931 35,931
Technology costs o R S 27,847 27,847
Legal and professional . - ‘ 16,007 ~ 16,007
Bank charges LT I : _ 114 114
N . 417,605 417,605
- 10.  Net inéomel(ekpenditure)
Net incomé/(e)(penditure) for the yéar includes:
12021 2020
' N £ - £
‘Operating lease rentals L A . o Co o A 1,555 1,655 -
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets : - C 29,499 30,593 '
Fees paid to auditors for: . ' o . S
-audit . ‘ ; - : 6,100 7,200
- other services o ~ 2,960 3,220
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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1.

Staff

. a. Staff costs

' Staff costs during the year were as follows:

Wages and salaries -
Social security costs
Pension costs

Agency staff costs.

b. Staff numbers o

The average number of persons employed by the Academy during the year was as follows: '

Teachers
Admin and support
Management

The average headcount expressed as full-time equivalents was:

Teachers

Admin and support
Management

24

2021 2020

£ £

713,982 626,805
43,441 38,827 .
209,989, 186,236
967,412 851,868 .

10,869 40,678
. 978,281 892,546
2021 2020 -

No. No.
14 11-
26 29

1 1

41 41
2021 2020
No. No. .

11 9
12 12

4 1

22
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

1.

12.-

Staff (continued)
c. Higher paid staff

The number of employees whose employee benefits (excludmg employer ‘pension costs) exceeded
£60, 000 was: .

2021 2020
No. - No.

In the band £60,001 - £70,000 ' A -

; .The higher paid member of staff above was part of the Teachers Pension Scheme. Durlng the year, -

employer pension contributions totalled £7,225.

d. Key manag’ement personnel

~..The key management personnel of the Academy comprise the Trustees and the senior management
‘team as listed on page 1. The total amount of employee benefits (including employer pension
. ‘contributions -and employer national insurance -contributions) received by key management personnel for

their services to the Academy was £224,273 (2020 - £215,032).

Trustees' remuneration and expenses

One or more Trustees has been paid remuneration or has received other benefits from an employmvent
with the Academy. The principal and other staff Trustees only receive remuneration in respect of services

~they provide undertaking the roles of principal and staff members under their contracts of employment.

The value of Trustees' remuneration and other benefits was as follows:

2021 T 2020
_ £ B

.S Land, Headteacher Remuneration 60,000 - 55,000 -
e o ' . 65,000 60,000

Pension contributions paid - 10,000 - 10,000 - -
S . ) . ) 15,000 15,000
J Rawlinson : Remuneration ‘ 50,000 - 45,000 -
: : ) . 55,000 50,000
Pension contributions paid - 10,000 - 10,000 -
. ' 15,000 15,000
S Thayer Remuneration 20,000 - 20,000 -
o R o 25,000 - 25,000
Pension contributions paid 0-5,000 0- 5,000

. During the year ended 31 August 2021, éxpenses totalling £182 were reimbursed or paid directly to 2
“ Trustees (2020 - £115 to 2 Trustees) in relation to educational resources and mileage to a partner school.
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13. Trustees' and Officers’ insuré_nce ) -

The Academy has opted into the Department for Education's risk protection arrangement (RPA), an
.alternatlve to insurance where UK government funds cover losses that arise. This scheme protects
Trustees and officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on
academy business, and provides cover up to £10,000,000. It is not possible to quantify the Trustees and
officers indemnity element from the overall cost of the RPA scheme membership.

14. Tangible fixed assets

Furniture e
" and  Plantand ~ Computer
equipment  machinery ' ‘equipment ‘° Total
£ £ oy ‘ £ . . £
Cost or valuation i , ) ‘ : 4 ,
.o+ At1 September2020 - o . 207,892 ' 33,659 .. 53,639 .. 295190
‘47 7 Addifions . T 0 23658 . 5,370 29,028
* " Disposals e T e e eyt (e13)
At 31 August 2021 ) : 231,550 33,659 V 58,096 + 323,305
i . .Depreciation _— _ .
¥ At1September2020 . , T 69,407 22,181 45,675 137,263,
A Charge for the year 22,639 3,030 3,830 ' 29,499
On disposals C ’ - - -0 (913) (913)
At 31 August 2021 - 92046 25211. 48592 165849
" Net book value
At 31 August 2021 : ’ 139,504 - 8,448 9,504 . 157,456
At 31 August 2020 . 138485 . 11478 7,964 157,927

The Academy occupies land and bqumgs provided to it by the D|ocesan Trustees under a Ilcense (also

_referred to as a Church Supplemental Agreement). Having considered the fact that the Academy
occupies the land and buildings by a license that transfers to the Academy no rights or control over the
site other than that of occupying it at the will of the Diocesan Trustees under the agreement, it has been
concluded that the value of the land and bundlngs occupied by the Academy will not be recognised or
valued within fi xed assets.
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15.

16.

Debtors =~ -~ ' = ' .
2021 - 2020 -
£ £
Due within one year _ : : ‘
Trade debtors . - A , . o 80 -
Other debtors ‘ "~ 15,421 19,445
" Prepayments and accrued income : : 41,008 136,796
56,509 156,241

Included withiﬁ accrued income is £10,000 in relation to pupil premiurn, rates relief, absence insurénce
and a review of financial planning grant (2020: £103,928 in relation to. CIF fundlng pupil premium, rates .

» relief, COVID grant, apprentice grants and IT platform grant funding)-

Creditors: Amounts falling-due within one year

2021

18,414

Deferred income in the current and prior year relates to Universal infant Free School Meals.

s

2020

£ £

Other loans ‘ - | 1,325 1,325

Trade creditors » ' . - . ’ : 33,400 66,426

- Other taxation and social security : ' o ' 11,712 11,372

Other creditors . ; - ) . " 4,978 -1,842

Accruals a__nd deferred income T ) ' B ' o 50,586 38,832

102,001 119,797

( .

2021 2020

, : _ : . £ £

Deferred income at 1 September 2020 - s ' e 18,803 20,695.

Resources deferred during the year . - _ B S ' 18,414 18,803
Am‘dunts released from previous periods = . (18,803) (20,695) -

+ 18,803
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

7.

Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than one year

2021
£

Otherloans - . ’ , - ' 5,300

2020
£

6,625

Included within other loans is a Salix loan of £6, 625 (2020: £7,950) repayable in six monthly mstalments'

over 5 years W|th an applicable interest rate of 0%.

-

-~
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL éTATEMENTS-
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

18.

Statement of funds

Balance at 1

Balance at.

) September _ : Transfers Gains/ 31 August
2020 Income Expenditure infout - (Losses) - 2021
£ £ £ £ £ - £
Unrestricted ~
* funds ,
General Funds - o ’

“.all funds - 97,615 2,736 (1,218) (317) - 98,816
Restricted

" general funds . '

‘GAG : 214,333 913,454 * (1,088,205) 92,745 - 132,327

- Rates . - 3,354 (3,354) - - -

- High Needs - 43,184 (43,184) - - .
Pupil Premium : . 27,430 (27,430) . . .
Universal Infant .

Free School . :
Meals - 31,567 -(31,567) - - -
Other DfE/ESFA , .
- grants -« - 37,206 (37,206) - - -
X PE and Sports U _ :
" ..u.Grant 6,125 17,770 (20,843) - - 3,052
. Exceptiqnal .
Government '

- Funding ) . 16,640 (16,640) - - -
Other Restricted :

- Funds - 14,077 (14,077) - S . -
.St Francis : . ’ , )

" . Project - T © - 78,688 (36,541) - - 42,147
< :Pension reserve (873,000) - (67,000) - (107,000) (1,047,000)
(652,542) 1,183,370  (1,386,047). 92,745 (107,000) (869,474)
Restricted fixed
asset funds
Transfers from . : . :
GAG 41,402 - (7,605) 546 - 34,343
DfE/ESFA '
Capital Grants 37,061 6,329 (7,813) - - 35,577
- (1,316) (180) -

Donations 8,707

7,211

Page 50 v



e : e L R A R
STx,TERESA's CATHOLIC PRIMARY SCHOOL“ BRISTOL ;

SRSy “-'A;;:—wr*&;&»m'n* AL 3 R '*”ﬁs'."s,_ 1 bR
3 A‘Company,lelted by Guaranteel‘g\.%t, S
ST A R A

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

18.

Statement of funds (continued)

Balance at 1 h Balance at .
September ' ; Transfers - Gains/ 31 August
2020 Income Expenditure infout (Losses) 2021
£ £ £ £ 7 £ 77 B
" Condition
Improvement 4
Fund (CIF) . 174,426 - (11,765) (92,794) - - - = 69,867.
Awards for All - : - o I
grants s 4,833 ' - .7 (1,000) - T 3,833
266,429 . 6,329 (29,499)  (92,428) ' - 150,831
" - Total Restricted ) : ' ' :
funds - (386,113) 1,189,699 (1,415,546) 317 (107,000) , (718,643)
oL, o R r .
Total funds . (288,498) 1,192,435  (1,416,764) . -~ (107,000) (619,827)

The specific purposes for Wh_ich the funds are to be applied are as follows:

RESTRICTED FUNDS’

General Annual Grant - Income from the ESFA which is to be used for the normal runnlng costs of the”
Academy, including education and support costs.

"~ Rates represents funding received from the ESFA during the period in order to reimburse the cost of
.natlonal non domestic rates (NNDR). S

. High Needs - Fundlng recelved by the Local Authority to fund further support for students W|th addltlonal ’

needs.

Pupil . Premlum Pupil premium represents- funding received from the ESFA for children that qualify for
free school meals to .enable the Academy to address the current underlying |nquaI|t|es between those
children and their wealthier peers. -

"Universal |nfants Free School Meals - Funding represents amounts received from the ESFA to support the
" Academy in delivering the legal requirement to offer free school meals to all their pupils in Year Groups R,

1and 2.

Other DfE/ESFA grants - this represents other fundmg reeived from the ESFA for restricted purposes
including the teachers' pay grant and teachers pension employer contribution grant. a .

PE and Sports Grant - Improvementsfor the prowsmn of PE and sport for the beneft of prlmary aged' :

“pupils, so that they develop healthy lifestyles.

Exceptlonal Government Fundlng -. Coronavirus . exceptional support is for ‘additional cleaning and T~
costs . , - .

' Other restricted funds represents various smatl donations received:

.. . o . T : R _ Page§1
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. 18.

Statement of funds (continued)

RESTRICTED FIXED ASSET FUNDS

Fixed assets purchased from GAG represents amount spent on fixed assets from the GAG funding
received from the ESFA. . .

DfE/ ESFA cépital funds represent amounts funding received from the ESFA to purchase fixed assets.

Donations is income from other sources to purchase specific fixed-assets.

-+" Condition Improvement Fund represents amounts received by the School for boiler and roofing

improvement projects. -

-Awards for Al represents Iottery funding received to create an area for all weather outdoor play and

learning.

OTHER INFORMATION

Under the fundlng agreement with the Secretary of State, the Academy was not subject to a limit.on the

amount of GAG it could carry fon/vard at 31 August 2021.
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.NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

) 18.  Statement of funds (continued)
Comparative information in respect of the pFeceding year is as follows:

Balanceat = - . " Balance at

1 September : Transfers - . Gains/ 31 August +
© 2019 Income  Expenditure infout - (Losses) - 2020
: : . £ £, K £ . £ ’ £
-Unrestricted o R Ve e e
funds o , e '
General Funds - Lo - SR T
+ allfunds- - - 95756 8592 (6735 el . 97615

1

B Restricted . : : S .

general funds ) B .

GAG . 207,750 913,340 (936,426) 29,669 . . ., . 214333
.~ Rates - 3323 . (3323 TR
- High Needs e 20,503 (20503). . . - . e

Pupil Premium ' C - 21,413 (21,413) . - - . s -

Universal:Infant . — o -

Free School ) , : -

Meals” . - - - . 31683 (31,683) R

' Other DfE/ESFA ST ‘ o T s

grants ' S - 38,921 (38,921) ¢ o- - -

PE and Sports A o ‘ : N ‘

Grant ) . 1,104 17,780, (12,759) .5 - - 6,125

‘Exceptional - o o . S , :

Government : T : . ~ - . -

Fundlng - 9,309 (9,309) - - -

Other Restricted - . ‘ ' ' o E -

Funds 2,692 8,2‘_13 . (10,805) ) B -

Devolved . . ; 0 : '

Formula Capital R 6,306 (356) (5,950) - .. - -

Pension reserve, (839, 000 - - - (61,000) - . 27,000 (873,000)

. (627,554) 1,070,791  (1,146,498) . -23,719 . 27,000  (652,542) °

- Restricted fixed

asset funds .

Transfers from : ' ' ‘ .

GAG i 50,436 Co (10,359) 1,325 - - 41,402

DfE/ESFA : ‘ . ) - . . .

Capital Grants 39,367 ' - (8,256) 5,950 .- 37,061

Donations 7,772 © 2,000 (1,064) _ - o - 8708
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18.

.19,

~ Condition -
" Improvement
“Fund (CIF)
. Awards for All
*.grants

Togal Restricted
"funds -

Total funds

. Balance at

.Statemént of funds (continued)

Analysis of net assets between funds

Tangible fixed assets
Current assets -

Creditors due within one year
. Creditors due in more than one year

Provisions for liabilities and charges

Difference

Balance at ,
1 September . Transfers Gains/ 31 August
2019 Income Expenditure infout (Losses) 2020
- £ £ £ £ £ - £
67,888 . 147,446 . (9,915) - (30,994) - 174,425
5,833 - - (1,000) - - 4,833
171,296 149,4423 ] (30,594) (23,719) - 266,429
(456,258) 1,220,237  (1,177,092) - -27,000‘ (386,113)
(360,500) '1',228,829, (1,183,827) - 27,000 (258,498)'_
Analysis of net assets between funds - curreﬁt year
. Restricted .o
Unrestricted  Restricted fixed asset " Total
funds funds funds funds
2021 2021 2021. 2021
£ £ £ £
- - :157456 157,456
98,815 278,203 - 377018
- (100,677) (1,325) (102,002)
- ‘ - . (5,300) ~ (5,300)
- *(1,047,000) -, (1,047,000)
1 - - (1)
K .
98,816 . ‘(869,474)‘ . 150,831 - (619,827)'

-Total
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021
t9. Analysis of net assets between funds (continued)
Analysis of net assets between funds - prior year <
' : Restricted ~
Unrestricted Restricted  fixed asset Total
funds ~funds . funds funds
’ ‘2020 2020 - 2020 2020
£ . £ . T £ £
: Tangible"ﬁfed assets ~ . - - . 157 927 157,927
Current assets ' - B b 97,615 338,930 1 16 452 - 552 997
Creditors due within one year ' - (1'18,472)_““ (1 325) (119 797)
Creditors due in more than one year L - - (6,625) .. (6,625)
Provisions for liabilities and charges ' - (873,000) - - (873,000)
. Total 97,615 .. (652,542) 266,429 " (288,498)
S f . Lt :
20. Reconciliation of net (expeAnditure)Iincome to net cash flow from operéting activities
’ " 2021 2020
£ R ¢
- Net (expendlture)/lncome for the year (as per Statement of Financial . . ) .
Activities) . , (224,330) 45,002
Adjustments for: . .

' Depreciation . ’ . S ... 29,499 30,592 -
Capital grants from DfE and other capltal income o B (6,329) . (153,752)
Interest receivable : : .o - (39) ¢ - (168)
Defined benefit pension scheme cost less contrlbutlons payable - . il: 67,000 61,000 -

' Decrease/(lncrease) in debtors o - ' 99,732 (27,035)
(Decrease)/mcrease in creditors . : g " ", (19,120) 43,948
Net cash used in operating activities . : , o .(53,587) - (413)

. ,
~
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21. . Cash flows from investing activities

2021 2020

. . o £ £
Dividends, interest and rents from investments ' ' .39 : 169
. Purchase of intangible assets - - - ‘ (29,028) © (7,950)
* Capital grants from DfE Group 4 o 6,329 65,284
. ‘Net cash (used in)/provided by investing activities ‘ (22,660) - 57,503 .
22 Analysis of cash and cash equivalents
2021 2020
_ : L £ . £
:Cash in hand and at bank ' S - 320,509 - 396,756
" Total caéh and césh equivalents A ‘ 320,509 . 396,756
23.  Analysis of changes in net debt
At1
. September At 31
’ I 4 2020 Cash flows August 2021
. : ' £ £ R
.- '~ .. Cash at bank and in hand ' 396,756 : (76,247) 32.0,509
' “:Debt due within 1 year _ ‘ (1,325) - (1,325)
'De‘bt due after 1 year . " . (6,625). 1,325 ' " (5,300)
388,806  (74,922) 313,884

24. ; Pension commitments

“=The Academy's employees belong. to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers' Pension Scheme
‘England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff; and the Local Government Pension Scheme’
(LGPS) for non-teaching staff, which is managed by Bristol City Council. Both are multi-employer defined
benefit schemes - ,

The latest.actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the perlod ended 31 March 2016 and of the LGPS 31
March 2019. . )

There were no o'u'tstan,din.g or prepaid contributions at either the beginning or the end of the financial year.
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24,

" Teachers' Pension Scheme

Pension commitments (continued)

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined’ beriefit sbheme governed by

- the .Teachers' Pension Scheme Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for fuII-tlme teachers in

academies. All teachers have the option to opt-out of the TPS following enrolment.

The - TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both the member and employer makes contributions as a
percentage of salary - these contributions are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pensmn
benefits are paid by public funds prowded by Parliament.

Valuation of the Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Government Actuary; using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS

- in accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014
-"published by HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review is to specify the level of future

contributions. Actuarial scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs,
design of benefits and many other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at

'31 March 2016. The valuation report was published by the Department for Education on 5 March 2019. .

The key elements of the valuation and subsequentconsultation‘ are:

o employer contribution rates set at 23. 68% of pensuonable pay (lncludmg a 0.08% admlmstratlon

levy)
) total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefi its) for

service to the effective date of £218,100 million and notional assets (estimated future contributions
together with the notional investments held-at the valuation date) of £196,100 million, giving a -
-notional past service deficit of £22,000 million » !

. the SCAPE.rate, set by HMT, is used to determine the notional investment return. The current
SCAPE rateis 2.4% above the rate of CPI, assumed real rate of return is 2.4% in excess of prices .
and 2% in excess of earnings. The rate of real earnings growth is assumed to be 2.2%. The -
assumed nominal rate of return including earnings growth is 4.45%.

'»‘The next valuation result is due to be implemented from 1 April 2023.

The efnployer's pension costs paid to TPS in the year amounted to £99,268 (2020 - £86,027).

A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers' Pensions website
(https://www.teacherspensions.co.uk/news/employers/2019/04/teachers-pensions-valuation-report.aspx).

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi-employer pension scheme. The
Academy has accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme.

The Academy has set out above the information available on the scheme. ,

—~
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

24,

Pension commitments’ (éontinued)
Local Government Pension Scheme
The LGPS is a funded defined benefit .pension scheme, with. the assets held in separate trustee-

administered funds. The total contribution made for the year ended 31 August 2021 was £76,000 (2020 -
£66,000), of which employer's contributions totalled £60,000 (2020 - £52,000) and employees'

~contributions totalled £ 16,000 (2020 - £14,000). The agreed contribution rates for future years are 156:5

per cent for employers and 5.5-12.5 per cent for employees.

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in thev

“event of academy closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the
‘Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013.

~

_ Principal actuarial assumptions

2021 2020

_ ’ % . %

. Rate of increase in salaries : 430 3.80

Rate of increase for pensions in payment/inflation ' ' 290 2.40
Discount rate for scheme liabilities . ‘ 1.70 . 1.80 ‘

Inflation assumption (CPI) : ‘ : . 280 2.30

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mbrtality rates.
The assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

2021 2020

i Years Years
Retiring today
Males : o _ - 233 232
. Females : ‘ o _ 254 25.3
Retiring in 20 years ‘ o , '
Males - - ‘ R : | 248 24.7
' Females ' : ' ' : . - 274 27.3
Sensitivity énalysis
2021 . 2020
, ) _ . £000 - £000
Discountrate +0.1% . . : N (40) T (33
Discount rate -0.1% ' ' : - A 41 33
Mortality assumption - 1 year increase _ ' . 57 42
Mortality assumption - 1 year decrease ' . - o . (55) (42)
CPlrate +0.1% ‘ ;. ' L 42 33
CPl rate -0.1% - : T (A1) (33)
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24. Pension commitments (continued)
‘Share of scheme assets -
The Academy's share o\f the assets in the scheme was:

2021 2020

‘ - h ) ’ ' £ £

Equities ‘ R _ . 329000 - 263,000
Corporate bonds : ) ' i - 62,000 16,000
Property : B o B 48,000 . 53,000
- Cash and other liquid assets A 14,000 18,000
/' Other’ ‘ : o © 241,000 204,000
Government bonds - S S ‘ B . 75,000 ~ 43,000
Total market value of assets - . . - ) _ " 769,000 597,000

- Thé actual return oh scher‘ne assets was £103,000 (2020 - £(25,000)).
The amounts recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities are as follows:
- * . " S ) i,
, . . 2021 - 2020«

o : o ! 3 £ N £
Current service cost ' . . (111,000) (96,000)

* Past service cost A ‘ . , ' - . (2,000 _
Interest income - - - B : L : 9,000 10,000
Interest cost : N o .. (250000 (250000 '

' Total amount recognised in the Statement 6f Financial Activities (127,000)  (113,000) '
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligations were as follows: .

2021 2020
. N £ . ' £
At1 September : o Co 1,470,000 1,402,000
Interest cost . . ‘ o 25,000 25,000
Employee contributior)s . : . : . - 16,000 14,000 -
" Actuarial losses/(gains) ' : _ o : 199,000 (64,000) -
~ Benefits paid o . _ : (5,000) . (5,000) .

" Pastservice costs ‘- , ' _- 2,000

v Current service cost ) o . ' - 111,000 96,000 |
At 31 August . . : ‘ _' ' 1,816,000 1,470,000
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24, Pen5|on commltments (contlnued)
Changes in the fair vaIue of the Academys share of scheme assets were as follows:
2021 2020
4 ‘ £ £
. At 1 September _ o : 597,000 563,000
Interest income - B S 11,000 - 11,000
Actuarial gains/(losses) _ n _ - _ 92,000 (37,000)
'Employer contributions FE : - 60,000 52,000
* . 'Employee contributions . - S 16,000 14,000
Benefits paid ' ) S . (5,000) (5,000)
Administrative expenses L (2,000)  (1,000) .
At 31 August’ _' R © 769,000 597,000
25." Operating lease oommitments *
" 'At 31 August 2021 the Academy had commitments to make future ‘minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases as follows :
2021 2020
£ N
. 'Notlaterthan 1 year . 1,555 1,655
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years S : 389 1,814
1,944 3,369
26. Members' liability

Each member of the charitable. company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the

. . event of it being wound up while he/she is a member, or within one year after he/she ceases to be a

member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding £NIL for the debts and liabilities contracted
before he/she ceases to be'a member. . : _ K
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27.

28.

29.°

‘ Related party transactions

Owing to-the nature of the’Acad’erhy and the composition of the Board of Trustees being drawn.from local -
public and private sector organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in which the

‘trustees have an interest. All transactions involving such organisations are conducted in accordance with

the requirements of the Academies Financial Handbook, including notifying the ESFA of all transactions
made on or after 1 April 2019 and obtaining their approval where required, and with the Academy's
financial regulatlons and normal procurement procedures relating to connected and related party
transactlons ' o ¢

The following related party‘ transécﬁons took place in the period of accdunt:

.The Diocese’of Clifton, an entity under’ common control, invoiced the academy £1,108 (2020: £1,115) for -

core services and training. At the year-end there was an outstanding balance in accruals of £844 (2020:
£820). :

. There were no other significant transactions during’ the year.

Post Balance sheet evenis

The Governing Body of St Teresa’s Catholic School Bristol made the decision during the year to consult
with all stakeholders about j joining The Cardinal Newman Catholic Educational Trust. The application has
been approved by the Regional Schools Commissioner for the South West and the Trust is scheduled to
transfer to The Cardinal Newman Catholic Educational Trust on 1 March 2022. As such, the educational
artavmes of the Academy W||| transfer as a gomq concern, however this entity will cease to ex1st

~

Controlling party

The ultimate controlllng party is the Bishop of Cllfton by virtue of holdlng the ability to appomt the majonty
of the Board of Trustees.
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